# **Public Document Pack**



# TO THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on Monday, 25 January 2021 at 7.00 pm. The meeting will be held virtually and webcast live through the Council's website in accordance with the Coronavirus Act 2020 and The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (S.I.2020 No. 392).

The agenda for the meeting is set out below.

RAY MORGAN Chief Executive

## **AGENDA**

#### **PART I - PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT**

#### Part I - Press and Public Present

1 Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.

#### 2 Minutes

To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21 December 2020 as published.

#### 3 Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

To review and outstanding items from the previous minutes.

#### 4 Urgent Business

To consider any business that the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

#### 5 Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary and other interests from Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.

#### **Presentations**

6 JWS Management Performance Update

Reporting Person: Sarah Beck, Joint Waste Solutions

7 Play Area Maintenance Update

Reporting Person: Arran Henderson

### **Matters for Scrutiny**

8 Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership (Pages 3 - 6)

Reporting Person: Councillor J Sanderson

#### **Matters for Determination**

9 Work Programme (Pages 7 - 30)

Reporting person: Councillor D Hughes

#### **Performance Management**

10 Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

To consider the current publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book). Members are asked to bring their copy of the Green Book to the meeting.

Reporting person: Councillor D Hughes

#### **AGENDA ENDS**

Date Published - 15 January 2021

For further information regarding this agenda and arrangements for the meeting, please contact Hanna Taylor, Democratic Services Officer, Ext 3056, Email Hanna.Taylor@woking.gov.uk



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 25 JANUARY 2021

# SURREY LIFELONG LEARNING PARTNERSHIP AND THE USE OF THE LAKEVIEW COMMUNITY CENTRE

#### **Executive Summary**

In its October 2020 meeting, the Committee agreed to establish a small Group of Members to scrutinise the proposals of the Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership (SLLP) and investigate whether the proposals should be considered as part of the Council's service provision.

A meeting was held in December 2020 with various interested parties from Woking Borough Council, SLLP and the Lakeview Community Action Group (LCAG). A number of projects were discussed which were of relevance to the Lakeview Community Centre

Given the external funding sources that are potentially available, it is not recommended at this point for *additional* ongoing financial support to be provided for these projects by the Council other than what has already been agreed. Instead it is recommended that an update is provided early in the next Council year 2021/22 to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee once there is a more clarity over the external funding bids and the various in-person activities and projects have recommenced at the Lakeview Community Centre.

#### Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

#### **RESOLVE That**

- (i) The report be noted and;
- (ii) to request an update on the planned projects and activities at the Lakeview Community Centre in approximately six months' time.

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation(s) set out above.

Background Papers: None.

**Reporting Person:** Councillor James Sanderson

Email: cllrjames.sanderson@woking.gov.uk

**Contact Person:** Councillor James Sanderson

Email: cllrjames.sanderson@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 15 January 2021

Page 3 OSC21-003

Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership and the use of the Lakeview Community Centre

#### 1.0 Introduction

1.1 In its October 2020 meeting, the Committee agreed to the following Recommendation of the Executive:

RESOLVE That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be invited to establish a small Group of Members to scrutinise the proposals of the Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership (SLLP) and investigate whether the proposals should be considered as part of the Council's service provision.

The SLLP were not granted the money in 2020/21 to start the pilot. They have not been given any money for this project to date yet – the grant was not awarded and the Executive passed the grant to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to look at future possibilities.

1.2 The Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership applied for a revenue grant of £22,306.18 for the 2020/21 financial year to establish a pilot in Lakeview which would see the development of a Community Hub supported at least 35 residents who may have missed out on learning in the past. The Partnership targets disadvantaged communities, establishing opportunities for learning through practical and educational courses. The proposals drawn up by the Partnership would be a welcome addition to the services offered to residents and would help address social and economic issues in and around the Lakeview area.

#### 2.0 Findings

- 2.1 Following the setting up of the Task Group in October, a meeting was held in December with various interested parties: WBC officers covering Family Services and Leisure Services, representatives from Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership and Lakeview Community Action Group, Councillors Sanderson, Hussain, Rana and Barker.
- 2.2 The following items/updates were discussed:
- 2.3 WBC Leisure Services (Steve May). The aim to increase cycling by the use of BMX track and working with local cycle clubs. There is a bid to Sport England for £60,000 (out of total requirement of £120,000). It would be a good fit with Bike Project proposed by SLLP by the use of existing garages and gazebo and it would be possible to education work inside the community centre. For the Sport England bid, feedback due by the second week of March.
- 2.4 Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership (SLLP) Kevin Delf. SLLP has been operating for 20 years and has three main priorities i) learning in communities ii) learning through enterprise e.g. Bike Project iii) learning through work e.g. employment advisers. It has a track record of success from prior projects. SLLP's proposal is good fit with other activities at Lakeview especially with Steve May's and Nicola Norman's teams. SLLP's proposal is to start with a small Bike Project as an extension of the Guildford project which is well established. SLLP have also applied to deliver employment support for 18-24 year olds as part of a current tender opportunity managed by Woking Borough Council, funded through the DWP. The tender exercise is likely to be completed by the end of January 2021.
- 2.5 WBC Family Services (Nicola Norman) Continue to work with vulnerable families from the Bungalow, Sythwood, utilising Lakeview for some of their active sessions with families and young people. There is an opportunity to tie these projects in with family support, providing physical and practical sessions for parents and children to enjoy together, linking and physical activity. This would be a welcome addition to the existing parenting offer and potentially (but not exclusively) provide an opportunity to engage more with Fathers and male role models.
- 2.6 Lakeview Community Action Group (LCAG). It has been running two groups (currently suspended due to COVID) at the Lakeview Community Centre: Little Minions (youth club for

#### Surrey Lifelong Learning Partnership and the use of the Lakeview Community Centre

- 7-11 year olds) and Lift Up Together (mental health support group) both focused on the Lakeview area. There is a possibility of building links between Little Minions and Surrey Clubs for Young People.
- 2.7 In conclusion, there are a number of projects and activities which already exist or are planned that involve the use of the Lakeview Community Centre and will be of benefit to the local community. In addition there is potential for significant synergies between a number of the projects.

#### 3.0 Next Steps

3.1 Given that we are awaiting the outcome of external funding bids which will determine the timing and scale of the planned new projects/activities and the current suspension of various inperson activities at the Lakeview Community Centre, a further update will be provided to the Committee in approximately six months' time.

REPORT ENDS



# WOKING BOROUGH COUNCIL Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

CIVIC OFFICES
GLOUCESTER SQUARE
WOKING GU21 6YL
01483 755855

www.woking.gov.uk

#### INTRODUCTION TO WOKING BOROUGH COUNCIL'S

#### **OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME**

This Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is published with the purpose of assisting the Council in its overview and scrutiny role. The Work Programme covers the following areas:

- Items for consideration at future meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
- An extract from the latest version of the Council's Forward Plan.
- o Any Scrutiny Review Topics proposed by Members of the Council for inclusion on the Work Programme.
- Any topics identified for pre-decision scrutiny.
- Details of the current Task Groups under the Committee's remit.

The Work Programme is designed to assist the Council with its overview and scrutiny role by providing Members with an indication of the current workload, subjects to be considered for review and items which the Executive expects to consider at its future meetings, so that matters can be raised beforehand and/or consultations undertaken with a Member of the Executive prior to the relevant meeting.

#### The Committee

**Chairman:** Councillor D E Hughes **Vice-Chairman:** Councillor M Whitehand

Councillor D Bittleston Councillor S Hussain
Councillor J Bond Councillor R Mohammed
Councillor G G Chrystie Councillor M I Raja

Councillor J R Sanderson

#### 2020/21 Committee Dates

- o 15 June 2020
- o 13 July 2020
- o 14 September 2020
- o 19 October 2020
- 23 November 2020
- o 21 December 2020
- 25 January 2021
- 22 February 2021
- o 22 March 2021

## **Suggested Additions to the Work Programme**

Decision to be Taken	Proposed by		у	Officer Comment
Safer Woking Partnership – Community Safety Plan. The Police and Justice Act 2006 gave local authorities responsibility for considering crime and disorder matters. In 2010 the Committee agreed that the Safer Woking Partnership Plan would be brought forward annually for scrutiny.	Chairman Chairman	and	Vice-	It was scheduled to be viewed at the meeting on 23 March 2020, which was cancelled due to the Covid outbreak.
<b>Investment Strategy.</b> To understand the Council's position on funding for projects and schemes such as the Flood Alleviation Plan, due to Covid-19.	Chairman Chairman	and	Vice-	This item will be carried over into the 2021/22 municipal year.
Freedom Leisure. For the Committee to receive an annual review and an update since the 2019/20 review.	Chairman Chairman	and	Vice-	This item will be carried over into the 2021/22 municipal year.

# **Annual Items of the Committee**

Item	Month Scheduled	Reporting Officer
JWS Management Performance	January	Richard Bisset
Annual FOI report Annual NVH Complaints Review Report	February	Hanna Taylor Jo McIntosh
Safer Working Partnership – Community Plan Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee	March	Camilla Edmiston Chairman of the OS Cttee
Celebrate Woking Review and Forward Plan Treasury Management Mid-Year Review	November	Chris Norrington / Riette Thomas Leigh Clarke

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 22 February 2021				
Decision to be Taken	Consultation	Background Documents	Contact Person	
	Performance Mana	agement		
Performance & Financial Monitoring Information. For the Committee to consider the current publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book).	None	None	Chairman	
	Matters for Detern	nination		
Work Programme. For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.	None	None	Hanna Taylor	
	Matters for Consid	deration		
Woking Football Club & Associated Developments Task Group. For the Chairman to provide an update following the independent legal review and report to Council.	None	None	Chairman	
Housing Scrutiny Topic Review. For members to reflect on the three sessions with officers that reviewed housing topics, policies and progress made.	None	None	Chairman Vice-Chairman	
Freedom of Information Requests. To review the statistics and requests that proceed to the Information Commissioners Office.	None	None	Hanna Taylor	

Overview of Complaints Received and Contract Review. For the Committee to review the complaints for 2020 and identify any trends. The Committee wish to review some areas of the contract.	None	None	Joanne McIntosh New Vision Homes		
Task Group Updates					
Task Group Update. To receive an update on the work of the Task Groups under the remit of the Committee.	1	None	Chairman		
Task Group Terms of Reference Update. To receive the draft terms of reference for each of the task groups that report to the Committee.	None	None	Chairman		

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 22 March 2021				
Decision to be Taken	Consultation	Background Documents	Contact Person	
	Performance Man	agement	,	
Performance & Financial Monitoring Information. For the Committee to consider the current publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)	None	None	Chairman	
	Matters for Deter	mination		
<b>Work Programme.</b> For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.	None	None	Hanna Taylor	
	Matters for Consi	deration		
Family Centres Update. For the Committee to receive an update a year on from the consultation that determined the re-modelling of the remaining Children's Centres in the Borough to create Family Centres as part of a wider Family Service, led by Woking Borough Council.	None	None	Adam Thomas	
Climate Change Emergency. To understand what actions have been taken since the Climate Change Emergency had been declared.	None	None	TBC	
Annual Report of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.	None	None	Chairman	

U	
В	
0	
$\Theta$	
_	
$\infty$	

	Task Group Upo	dates	
<b>Task Group Update.</b> To receive an update on the terms of reference of the three Task Groups under the remit of the Committee.		None	Chairman

## **Latest Version of the Forward Plan**

The Forward Plan gives an indication of the decision to be taken by the Executive. Published monthly, the Forward Plan has traditionally given an indication of the decisions to be taken over the following four months.

Key Decision	Subject	Decision to be taken	Consultation (Undertaken prior to the meeting unless otherwise stated)	Background Documents	Contact Officer
No	Notice of Motion - Cllr T Aziz - Viability of Affordable Homes	To consider the Notice of Motion from Cllr T Aziz referred to the Executive on 14 January 2021 by Council on 3 December 2020.	Cllr Elson, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Deputy Chief Executive (Douglas J Spinks)
No	Independent Directors of Subsidiaries	To determine the process for the appointment of Independent Directors.	Cllr Azad, Leader of the Council.	None.	Chief Executive (Ray Morgan)
No	Performance and Financial Monitoring Information	To consider the Performance and Financial Monitoring Information contained in the Green Book.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)

# 4 February 2021

Key Decision	Subject	Decision to be taken	Consultation (Undertaken prior to the meeting unless otherwise stated)	Background Documents	Contact Officer
Yes	General Fund, Service Plans, Budgets and Prudential Indicators 2021- 22	To recommend to Council the General Fund, Service Plans, Budgets and Prudential Indicators for 2021-22.	Cllr Ashall, Portfolio Holder, Business Managers.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)
Yes	Housing Revenue Account Budgets 2021-22	To recommend to Council the Housing Revenue Account Budgets for 2021-22.	Cllr Ashall, Portfolio Holder, Business Managers.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)
Yes	Investment Programme 2020-21 to 2024-25	To recommend to Council the full review of the Investment Programme and priorities.	Cllr Ashall, Portfolio Holder, Business Managers, Finance Task Group.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)
Yes	Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategies	To recommend to Council the Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategies for 2021-22.	Cllr Ashall, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)
Yes	Housing Management and Maintenance Service	To recommend to Council that the delivery approach for Housing Management and Maintenance Services from 1 April 2022 be confirmed (following resident consultation).	Cllr Harlow, Portfolio Holder and Housing Task Group, tenant and leaseholder consultation.	None.	Director of Housing (Louise Strongitharm)

Yes	Monument Way West Development Proposals	To authorise the framework which will include affordable housing and Woking Community Transport relocation.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Executive (Ray Morgan)
No	Terms of Joint Study on the Future Infrastructure Requirements of the East of Woking	To agree terms of a joint study with other authorities and partners on the future infrastructure requirements of the east of Woking, based on both current demand and future demand.	Cllr Elson, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Deputy Chief Executive (Douglas J Spinks)
No	Performance and Financial Monitoring Information	To consider the Performance and Financial Monitoring Information contained in the Green Book.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)
No	Monitoring Reports - Projects	To provide quarterly reports on the progress of projects in the interests of financial prudence and corporate governance.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Executive (Ray Morgan)

	٦	Ū
	۵	5
(	C	2
	a	)
	N	ى
	C	S

Yes	Monument Way West Development Proposals	To receive confidential information in respect of the Monument Way West Development Proposals in Part I of the agenda.  (The press and public will be excluded from the meeting during consideration of this item in view of the nature of the proceedings that, if members of the press and public were present during this item, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A, to the Local Government Act 1972.)	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Executive (Ray Morgan)
Yes	Development Agreement - New Central Extension	To authorise a development agreement.  (The press and public will be excluded from the meeting during consideration of this item in view of the nature of the proceedings that, if members of the press and public were present during this item, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A, to the Local Government Act 1972.)	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Executive (Ray Morgan)

# **Special Executive - 25 February 2021**

Following the Special Grants Executive held on 10 December 2020, a Special Executive has been scheduled to review the allocation of funds in the event either the Revenue Grant budget or the Capital Grant budget is reduced as part of budgetary considerations.

# 25 March 2021

	Key Decision	Subject	Decision to be taken	Consultation (Undertaken prior to the meeting unless otherwise stated)	Background Documents	Contact Officer
	Yes	Medium Term Financial Strategy	The decision is sought to set the framework for Officers to develop detailed proposals for consideration by the Council to ensure the medium term financial stability of the Council in the context of its objective to support growth and to maintain services for local people.	Cllr Ashall, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)
	Yes	Smarts Heath Road Woking Gymnastic Centre	To recommend to Council funding arrangements for the implementation of the approved scheme.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Executive (Ray Morgan)
	Yes	Robin Hood	To recommend to Council the provision of Loan Finance to Rutland Woking for the development of the former Pub site for residential accommodation.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Deputy Chief Executive (Douglas J Spinks)

No	Churchyard Closure and Transfer of Maintenance Responsibility – St Mary The Virgin Horsell	The Executive is requested to resolve that the responsibility for the maintenance of the closed churchyard at St Mary The Virgin Horsell is transferred to Woking Borough Council.	Cllr Davis, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Director of Neighbourhood Services (Geoff McManus)
No	Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 - Annual Monitoring Report and IPSO Report	To receive details of RIPA authorisations during 2020 calendar year, and to receive the IPSO report and agree any necessary resulting actions.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Director of Legal and Democratic Services (Peter Bryant)
No	Write off of Irrecoverable Debt	To write off debts over £10,000.	Cllr Ashall, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)
No	Performance and Financial Monitoring Information	To consider the Performance and Financial Monitoring Information contained in the Green Book.	Cllr Azad, Portfolio Holder.	None.	Chief Finance Officer (Leigh Clarke)

## **Current Task Groups Responsible to the Committee**

The table below provides a list of current Task Groups established by the Committee, including an indication of the resource requirements and the anticipated completion date. Updates on the progress of individual Task Groups are included elsewhere on the Committee's agenda.

Task Group	Topic	Membership	Resources	Date Established	Anticipated Completion Date
Economic Development Task Group	To identify and seek the implementation of measures to mitigate the impact of the economic downturn on the residents, community organisations and businesses in the Borough of Woking.		Officer and Councillor time.	11.03.09	Ongoing
Finance Task Group	To review Financial issues as and when identified by the Committee. Financial Performance of the Council Management and Administration of Accounts procurement Strategy, Pension fund, Financial Strategy.	Cllrs Ashall, Azad, Aziz, Bond, Davis, Hughes, and Sanderson.	Officer and Councillor time.	25.05.06	Ongoing
Housing Task Group	To review Housing issues as and when identified by the Committee, including Housing Strategy, Housing Business Plan, Housing Service Plans, Housing Revenue Account, Housing Conditions, Housing Needs, Private Sector Housing, Home Improvement Agency, Housing and Council Tax Benefits, and monitor/review progress of the PFI Scheme	1	Officer and Councillor time.	25.05.06	Ongoing